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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tha LRI TSI afASA PHILIPPINES FOLUMNDATION, INC, (&
MICROFINANCE NGO) 1s responable tor the preparacon amid tair presentition of the
bancial statenents wchcdog the schedules arached therein, a5 of and for the vears ended
Dreceimber 31, 202 and 2009 in accordance wiuh the preserdbed  thancial teporting
Fratnework indicated theeein; and for soch mgeroal congeol as management determines. s
necessary to enable the preparanon of financial staremenes thar are free frome marernal

trssrarenenl, 'I'-"-'J'll':lil-.'l :.Il.ll..' Por- b e error,

[ prepastz the Goancial saements, oimagement 120 pesponsible for assessng the
[Fomundateomn’s alality o conbnue as @ pouwne coneee, L’.ixrlc:-r;::yz as anpiicable, muacters relared
t poing concern and nsing rhe-poing concein bagis of accotmting unless manageiment. eithet
wtends 1o bopmclare the Founeancom or g coase operanong, or has nooreilsne alremaoee o do
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The Board of Toostees w wesponsble tor overseeuyg the Foundanon'’s boancia] ceporomg

PrrCiEs.

The Board of Trustees reviens and approses the tiancal stetements, meladmg the sehedules

artzched thercen, and sulsmie: the same mo the members.

Pursomgbayan & Ao, the mdependent auditors appointed by the membees, bas mudined
the Boanci! satements of the Foundaoon moaccordanee with Phabippane Standards . o
Wi, and an their @ reporr o rthe members, has expressed thetr i opion on the
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Report of Independent Auditors
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The Board of Trustees

ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc. (A Micrafinance NGO)
{4 Menstock, Nonprofit Organization)

18" Floor Prestige Tawer, F. Ortigas Jr Strest

Driigas Cenlar, Pasig Gity

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

Ve have audited the financial statements of ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc. (A Microfinance
NGO [the Faundation], which comprise the statements af financal position as at December 31,
2020 and 2018, and fhe statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in fund
balance and statements of cash fiows for the years then ended, 2nd notes to e financial
statements, including a sumemary af significant accounting pelicias.

In our opinion. the accompanying financial slatemeants present fairly, in all material respects,
tne financial position of the Faundation as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine
Finarcial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We cenducted our gudits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA) Our
respansibilities under those standards are furlher described in the Auditors’ Responsibiitias for
the Avelit of Ihe Financlal Slatements section of our report, Wa are independent of the
Foundation in accordance with the Cede of Ethics for Professicnal Accountants in the
Fhilippines {Code af Ethics) tagether with the ethisal requirements that are relevant te aur
audits of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethice We believe that
ne audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to pravide a basis far our

opinicn.
e RS e
14 T 713 1
i - I
d AR 18202 |
i
1 = ——
Cartlfied Pulxlio dccountonts ; _|: '._ - %A AR ! granitharnten.cam.ph
Suncraneuan Faraulls [PiaY = the Fiilaplne moemper femood Soont Taareion Interbbsignol Lid =y




. P&A
-f":.i}" Grant Thornton

An instingt far oot

Emphasis of Mafter

Vile draw altention to Mote 1 1o the financial statements, which describes managemant's
assessment of the continuing impact on the Foundation's financial statements of lhe business
disruption brought by the COVID-19 pandemic. Our apinion iz nol modified in respect af this
matter,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is respansible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
naccordance with PFRS, and for such intermal control as manzgement determines is
MECessary 10 enable the preparation of financial staterments that are free fram materigl
misetatemant, whether due te fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management is respansible for assessing the
Feundation's ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, &s apolicable, matters relsted to
going concern and using the geing concern basis of accounting unless rmanzgement aitlar
intends o lfquidate the Foundaticn or to cease aperations. or has no realistic alternative but 1o
0o =0,

These charged wilh governance are responsible far overseeing the Foundation's financial
reparting pracess,

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasoneble assurance aboul whether the financial statements as 3
whole are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an
auditors’ repart that includes our opinion.  Reazanable gssurance & a Righ level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee thal an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detes! a
material misstatement when it exigls. Misstalements can arise from frawd ar error gnd are
consicered material I individually or in the aggreqate, they could reasonably be expected 1o
influence the economic decielons of users taken on the basis of fhese financial statemeants

As part of an audil In accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgrent and maintain
professianal skepticism throughout the zudit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of fhe financial statements, whether
due 10 fraud or errer, design and perform audit procedures responzve o those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate fo previde a basis for our apiniar,
The risk of not detacting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher han for one
resulting from emor, as fraud may invalve collusion, fargery, infenticnal omissions,
misrepresentalions, ar the override of internal cantral,

= Dbtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit In arder to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the cincumstances, but not for the purpose of axpressing
an opinion on the effectvenass of the Foundation's intemal central

+ Evaluzte the appropraleress of accounting policies used and the.reasonablensssaf _
accounting estimates and relaled disclosures made by management. - 00 :

MAR 19 2021
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+ Gonclude on the appropriateness of management's uze of the goino concem basis of
sccounting and. based on the audit evidence oblained, whether @ matenat uncertzinty
exisls related to events or conditions that may casl significant doubt on ihe Founcation's
ability 1o continue as a going concem. |f we conclude that 2 material uncedainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditorg reparl 1a the relzfed disclosures in the
financial staterrants or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify cur epinian. Qur
conclisions are based an the audit evidance obtained up to the date of our auditers' repor
Howavar, future events or condilions may cause the Foundation to cease to cantinue as 2
going concerm.

« [Evaluate he overall presentztion, structure end content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether [he financizl statements represent the underlying
transactions 2nd events in a manner that achieves fair preseclatian

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amang olher maliers, fhe
planned scope and timing of the audit and significan audit frdings, including any significarnt
deticiercias in infernzl control that we identify during our audit

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Qur audiis were conducied for the purpose of forming an opinior an the hasic fnancial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information for the year ended December 31
2020 required by the Bureau of Internal Kevenue as disciosed in Mate 18 10 the financial
statemants |s presented for purposes of additiona’ analysis and = nol a required par of the
kasic financial statoments prepared in accordance with PEFRS. Such supplamentary
information is the responsibility of management. The supplementary Informstion has been
subjected 1o the auditing prosedures applied in the audit of the besic financial statements and,
in our opinion, is fairly stated in afll material rezpects in relzbion 1o the basic fingncisl staterents
fakean as a whole.

PUNONGEAYAN & ARAULLO
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By: Anthony L. Ng
Pariner
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ASAPHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC, (A MICROFINANCE NG )
(A Nonstock, Neaprofft Ogranfzation )
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2020 ATII 2019
fAmaouvnts in Philippine Pesos)

Blates

2020

209

s e Y ) o) B

CASEH

LOANE RECEIVABLE - Met

OTHER RECEIVABLES

PROPERTY AND EQUIFMEINT - Ner

RENTAL DEPOSITS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUINIY BALAMWOE

MICROSAVINGS
LOAMS PAYABLE

POST-EMPLOYMENT DEFINED
BEMNEFIT OBLIGATION

OTHER LIABRILITIES

TOTAL LIABRILITIES

FLUMNI} BALANCE

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

-y
)

1+

11

P 2,493,914,763
20,242.696,492
10,918, 106
176,368,800

38,680,757

I 2505240 54
N, 474,216,174
726117

| 63,0058 600

IT N AATE

P 22056578018

I 23215216367

F 11,614,504 511

F 10748015044

1,146,508,333 1210 000, 0
1,01%,271,200 1,436, 737200
E09,712,047 TR, R0, 5RG
14,284 086,991 14,151,283 420
672,491,927 Y 163,932,041

P 22,956 578918

See Nores 1o Finaneral Staremenss.
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ASA PHILIPPIMES FOUMNDATION, [N, (A MICROFIMNANCE MNGOY
(A MNansmock, Meaprofr Oreaniation)
FTATEMENTS OF COMPREHEMNEIVE INCOME
FOMR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMEER 31, 20200 A™IY 2014
(A engnares Lo Philiprpine Feves)

REVENUES
Revenue froan rucrofinaning achvabes

Lither revenues

EXPENSES
Presjert aoses
Creneral and adminiseanye expenses

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
leem that will noe he reclassified
subsequently 1o profir or loss
Femeaseremnent of posr-employneni
defined Sensiic plan

TOTAL COMPREEHEMSIVE IMNCOME {LOSS)

Mutes 2N

A9

} ro6,267,341,611

2N A

114340732

B 34,734423

7,12 66,534,046
6,433,876,557

14
5,037,517,518

1,525,827, 355

417220718
R

_ TA7.344.871

5,111,R011 401

{ 1033,968,314)

14 A4 0%, 300

3342 4hREA2E

GEINDSAUD

{ P 391441014

ll

el L o P

Ker Netex fo Frnancial Statements.




A3A PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC, (A MICROFINANCE NGO)
A MNonstock, NonpeodTn Gomanfcation)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMEBEHR 31, 2020 AMD 2010
{Amouris in Phrlippine Pesos)

Mlones 2020 20114

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION

ka2

r 41, 3a0000 T 41,360,000

GEMNERAL FLIND

Halinoe at beminmng of vear 0,540, 544,441

&, 206,897 410
Excess (defod of cevenues aver

expenses dunng the vear (_ LD334683145 3342953077
Balanee ar end nf year _ 8EB16,376,127 9549 844 441
REMEASUREMENT OF
POST-EMPFLOYMENT DEFIMNED
BEMEFIT PLAM™
Balence ar begrinnifge of vear f AT 271,500 ) i, 383 900
Cither comprehansive income (Joss) 14 G4 E,I:IE'.I',SI'_'_H,F. i 13 A5 5_:1_["! |
Balance at end of vear 114,755,800 527,271,500 )
TOTAL FUND BALANCE P 8672491927 [ L0633z o4

See Wotes fo Financial Srafements.
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ASA FHILIFPIMNES FOUNDATION, INC. (A MICROFINANCE MGO)
A MWansrock, NWonprefit Chepanizartion)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3, 2030 AMND 2019

(Arneuety in Philfppine Pesos)

Motes azn M
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Fxcess (deficiy of sevenues over cxpenses [ P 1033463147 1 35420553022
Adjustments for
Irnpaderienr beas .1 2 AR5 2 TRL HTA G230
Itterest exgense 16, 13,44 144,544 289 138090018
Duprecabon and amormzation E 15 T,574,958 HERDTNELS
Imterest incormie Trom baok il PR s A0y [ M lL1 _’-H1
Fxress of revenues over expenses before anskinp cepical changes L 747,560,065 ks
Incdeass in loans receavulbile { 345,784,313 ) | .|IJ.3-.J_.r|r|.:r|:| |
Decreass in orher rocervakles 23,80%,001 EDORY AT
Liacecese in rental depesis { TOFO8R ) ¢ 3ATH 685
Increase in microszvings BRA,ETHETL 1,850 a1 A8
Increase in post-emplovizent defined benefir obbpanon 155, H05,213 FI7,577 445
Drecrease in other linbihses i 245,048,535 4 ¢ :'-!4|3,Ll'.-__‘,':.,- b
Casls genezated fom vperaticons 196,315,257 1 658 67RA77
Tnresest teceived 12 20495020 A 2ELE]
Cach pand for Gl Laxes [ 4.098,386 1 ! 4,055,176
Ner Cash From Operating Actvries F12, 710, 380 GBS, 104 02
CASH FLOYS FROM AN INVESTING ACTIVITY
Aoguisitions of properry and squipment Koo TEMS415E Y | TIETE %
CALH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES i
tepryments of loans { BlE, 101,667 ) | FLAOO O )
Procesds focm Joan svailments 532,61k, 00H
Tnperest pasd [ TG00, 616 5 o e I
Met Cash Used in Finunangs Achvities { 145,153,283 ) 1 TATATHREG |
WET INCHEASE (DECREASE) [N CASH i 11,326,041 A1152,93)

CASH AT BEGINNIMNG OF YEAR

CASH AT ENI OF YEAR

Hpe Mertex fo Frnancial Sraremenss,

2,502 241, 514

I GED 8T B4

Po2495004.763 B 2505240804
‘ TEFMALREVENIE
L] I'i MAR 14 Eﬂﬂl
L . |
ik = -._6_1];@ E e




AsA PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC. (A MICROFINANCE NGO)
(A Nonscock, Nogprofie Chrganreation)
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
{Amounts m Philfppine Pesos)

GENERAL INFORMATION
LT Foundatron faforrmaiion

ASA Philippines Foundaoon, Ine, (A Microfinance NGO [the Foundaton or ASA]
was incorporated iy the Philippines as 2 nonstock, nonprofit organizanon and
t‘-.‘:ErJS[Em:d with the I’l‘l.i.h]}]:i.t:lt Secunmtes and Exchanpe Commission on july 9 24040 s
primary purpose is to provide access to economue and financial facilities, social and
other developmental opportunites 1o the dissdvancaged scctors including the small,
cottage and muicro-entreprencunal poor of the communmny o fighe agamst poverey,
empowering them theough self-employment and economic upliftment, so they may live
with digniry, and 10 conduct microfinance operations pursuant to Republic Act (R.AL
Mo 8325, Sedaf Belirs amd Peverty Alledation Ak

The A%A Program provides:

f@) Albcrohnance services to qualified poor, low-mncome women ::ﬂgagu;c] 11 e mnl
small seale enrerpnses;

i) Financial and other forms of asststance o irs members in case of sickness, death
st calarmities ancd tu]E:E;u Echu]ﬂnﬁlup for dt:a::n'ulg children of members, as patt
of social services to the poor: and,

{2} Business developmment services for the members o improve efficiency and
effecivencss (I enterpose Management.

As of December 31, 20230 and 2019, the Foundanon has 1,083 and 1,634 branches,
respectively, covenng 82 provinces in the Philippines. The Foundadon bas established
footheld i Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao, as it operates B30, 4249 and 398 branches
therein, respectively,

The Foundation's regastered head office, which is also its prindpal place of bosiness, i
Incared at 15" Floor Prestige Tower, F. Ortigas [r. Streer, Orapas Center, Pasip Ciry,

12 Impact of COVID-12 Pandemic on the Foundation'’s Operatinns

The COWVID-1Y pandernic started to become widespread in the Philippines in early
March 2020, The messures taken by the povernment to contan the viros have affecred
economic condinons and the Foundanon's operanons.



-

The following are the impact of the COVID-1Y pandemic o the Foundadan's
OTCIATIONS:

In

recopmnon of inpairment loss on loans recetvable smounting o 2,582 402,741,
decline in total revenues in 2020 hy 24% compared to thar of 2019,

tempotarily delay of the collection of lnan amorttesdon of members 10 the middle of
March 2020 unsl the end of May 2020; and,

additonal administradve expenses were meurred o ensuee the physical and
psychosocial health and safery of ity employees and members.

response to this marter, the Foundaton bas taken the following scoons:

availed the first tranche loan of s facility agreement to finance the operations while
exneniencing slow collecoon of loans receivalile;

agreed with Coca-Cola Far East Limited, Philippines (CCFEL) and the Department
of Trade and Industry to collshorzate and implement the Rehuilding the Sar-Sari
srores Through Access o Resources and Trade (ReSTART) Program — Component
3 Retailer’s Rebuild Bridge Lown which s intended ro assist retulers whe were
severely impacred retailers of the lockdowns dee o COVID- 1Y pandemic. An natal
P24,000,000 was provided by CCFEL while the Foundaton conreributed
P126,350,000. Teaining, markeung and other business development srrategies fus
members were implermented;

offered interese-free Inans called 'MalASAkic Financing' to help its members finance
entmepreneurial acrivities;

provided cash relicf assistance tooall its members;

provided physical and peychosorial health and safery measures for emplayees and
members such as (1} frequent disinfection of facilities, (2) COVID-19 resting for s
employees, (3) provision of aleohol and seaps for sumazing and handwashing in
proup meetings, (4) creanon of twelve molation cenrers 10 provide best support fot
the Foundarion’s staff, and {5) shouldenng expenses for safl and providing financeal
support to members for COVID-19 meidences:

reminded the stff and members oo the impomance and implementation of safery
protocnls; and,

suspended repairs and recduced certan emplayee henefirs and bonuses.

Based on the above actons and measures taken by manapement 1w mitpace the adverse
effect of the pandetrae, 1t projects that the Foundanon would have positve result of
cperations and would remain liguid 1o meet current obligaton as i flls due
Accordingly, management has not determined marerial uncertamty that may case
sigmificant doubt on the Foundauon™ abiliey to contnue as a going concerr,

1.3  Approvalof Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Foundadon as of and {or the vear ended December 31,
2020 fncluding the compatatve Dnancial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2009} were authonzed for issue by the Foundadon’s Board of Trostees
(BOT) on February 23, 2021,



2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accoundng policies that have been used in the preparaton of these
financial stalements are summarized below. These frodicies have been consistently
applicd (o all years presented, unless otherwise stated

21 Basis of FPreparation ef Financial Starcments

fa) Statsment of Compiiance with Phifippsae Financtal Reportine Standards

i)

€

The financial statements of the Foundadon have been prepared i accordance with
Phalippine Finaneial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRE are adopred by the
Financial Reporing Standards Council (FREC) from the prooouncements ssued by
the Intemational Accounning Standards Board, and approved by the Philippinc
Board of Accountancy.

The financial searements have been prepared ssing the measurement hases specified
by PERS for each nype of asser, liabilicy, income and expense, The measurernent
bases arc more fully descobed o the accounting policies thar follow,

Presentaiion of Finanaal Siatements

The financial seatements aze presented in accordunce with Philippine Accounting
standard (PAS) 1, Preweasaiton of Finandal Statemerts. The Foundation presents all
items of income and expenses in a single statement of comprehensive incofme

The Foundarion presents a chird statement of financial pesiton as ar the bepinning
af the preceding penod when it applies sn accounting policy rerraspectively, ar
miakes a retrospective restatemment or reclassification of dtems that has ¢ marerial
effect on the information in the statement of financial position at the beginning of
the preceding penod. The related notes to the third satement of Gnancial PosItan
are oot required to be disclosed.

Fanctional and Presentaion Curvency

These financial statements are presenced in Philippine pesos, the Foundasion’s
runchonal and presentation eurrency, and all values represent absolurs amennts
except when otherwise indicared.

Trems included i the financia] staterments of the Foundation are measured using i
functional currency, Funetivaal currency is the prmany economue environment i
which the Foundadon DPECares.



2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
yal Hifecrree o 2N0NE tha gre Bedevant fo the Fonndation

The Foundaton adopred for the first time the following amendments o PERS,
which are manderonly effectve for annual periods beginning on or afrer
Janmary 1, 2020

Coneeprozl Framework : Revised Concepruzl Feamework for
Financial Reporong
PAS Land PAS B
{Amendments) i Presencaton of Financil Setements and
Accounting Policies, Changes 1n
Accounnng Esamares and Errors —
Definidon of KMarerial
PIFRS T and PFRS Y
(Amendments) :  Financial Insorumenes: Disclosures and
Financial Instrumments — Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

Discussed below are the relevant informanon about these proncuncements,

i) tewred Concpenal Framewark for Fingndal Reporting. The revised cogceptual
framework will be used in standard-setting decisions with immediate offecr.
Key changes include (1] mcreasing the prominence of stewardship m the
objective of Anancal reporang, (B) reinstafing prudence as 1 componenr of
neutrality, {c) defiming 2 reparting endry, which eay be a legal encity, or a
portion of an entity, {d) revising the definitions of an asset and a Liabuliry,
{e} rernoving the probability theeshold for recoprition and adding guidance
on derecogninon, (f) adding guidance on ditferent messuremens basis, and,
() stanng that profit or loss is the primary pecformance indicarar and thar,
in ponciple, incotne and expenses in other comprehensive income should be
recyeled where this enhances the relevance or faithful representadon of the
tinancial sratements. The application of the revised conceprual framework
had no significant impact on the Foundazon's financal starements,

iy PAS T (Amendments), Preentation of Finanaal Stalemrenis, and PAS 8
(Amendments), Arouning Poies, Changer i Acoseuting Ditimates and
Errurs — Definitson of Matemad. The amendments provide a clesrer definirion
of ‘matenal’ in PAS 1 by incloding the concept ol "obscunng’ mareril
mformanon with immatertal informaton as part of the new definibon, and
clarifying rhe assessiment threshold {Le, misztatement of nfommaton is
marerial if it could reasonably be expeceed 1o influence decisions made by
primary users, which consider the characrerizsic of those users as well as the
entty's own crcurnstances). The definigon of marenal in PAS 8 has been
accordingly replaced by reference to the new definiton m PAS 1. In
addition, smendment kas also been made 10 other standards thar contain
definition of material or refer to the term ‘marerizl’ W ensure consistency,
The apphicanon of these amendments had no significant impacr on the
Froundation's financial staiements.
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fuiy  PFRS T {Amendments), Freanoa! Inirmenti: Divdamres, and PERS ©
(Amendmenes), Fesancal Instrunsents < Inferest Bate Bevchosark Reforss. The
amendments clanify that an entity would consdnue oo apply cortam hedpe
fooountng tequitemnents sssuminy that the interest rare benchmark on
which the hedged cash flows and cash flows from the hedgng instmoment
are based will not be altered as 2 result of inzerest rate benchmark reform
The applcation of these amendments bad no symuiBicant impact on the
Foundadon's financial starements,

E: ffecitve i 2020 that are viot Refevant ta the Foundation

Amoang the annual improvetnents o extstng standards which are mandatonly
effectve for annual penods bepinning on or after Janeary 1, 2020, PFRS 3
{(Amendments}, Bugwers Combinationr — Definttion of o Business 1= nor applicable to
the Foundanon.

Ejfective Yubrequent to 2020 bur aoi Adgpred Bardy

There are amendments to exstng standards effecdve for annual penods
subsequent 1 2020, which are adopred by the FR3C. Management will adopt the
relevant pronouncements in accordance with theit tansitonal provisions; and;
unless otherwise stated, none of these are expected o have significant LTACT G
the Foundation's financial staremenrs.

il PFRS 16 {Amendments), Legies — COVI-19-Related Rent Concersons
{effective from June 30, 2020%. The amendments permit lessecs, a5 o
pracocal expedient, not ro assess whether partculas rent concessions
nccurnng as & direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic are lease
modifications and instead to account for those rent concessions as if they
are nof lease modifications,

i) PAS 16 {Amendments), Proferty, Pant and Equment — Progeeds Before Iniewdled
Lise feffectrve from January 1, 20220 The amendments prohibit deducdng
trom the cost of an tem of properry, plant and equipment any proceeds '
trom selling wems produced while bringing that asset to the lacanon and
condiion necessary ot it o be capalile of opermtng in the manner inended
by management, Instead, an endry recopnizes the proceeds from sellig
such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

(1) PAS 37 [Amendmencs), Prosrens, Cantingenr Liabifies aud Conlingent
Assets — Urersus Comracts — Cait of Padfiling @ Conteact {effective January 1,
20231 The amendments specily that the ‘cost of fulfilling a contract
comprses the 'costs that relate directly oo the conrract’, Coses that relate
directly to & contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling char
contract fexamples would he direcr labor, materials) or an allecadan of ather
costs thar relare dircetly to fulRlling contracts (an example would be the
allocation of the deprectadon charge for an item of property, plane and
equiptnent used i fulfithng the contract).



iy Annual lmprovements o PFRS 20182020 Cycle. Armong the
improvemnents; the following amendments, which are effective from
Janary T, 2022, are relevant o the Foundation:

*  PFRS 9 [Amendments), Finandal Initrments — Fres in the "0 por sond” Vet
for Derveognirion of Liabitities. The improvements clacify the fees that a
company incledes when assessing whether the temms of 5 new ar
maodificd inancial hability are substanually differene from che terms of
the original fmancial labiliy,

o [lustranve Examples Aceompanying PFRS 10, Leases — Lease {ncenitver.
The impravement merely removes potential for confusion regarding
lease Incenuves,

v PAS 1 (Amendments), Precentation of Fiwancal Neatemenis — Classiffcaison of
Lsatslittes iy Crorrent or Mon-current {effective Januaey 1, 2023}, The
amendments aim to promote consiste ncy in applying the requirements by
helpmyr companies determine whether, in the statement of financial F..-_.;:.iﬁi.ﬂ_-. .
delst and other habtlines with an vocentain settdement dase should be
classified as current {due or potentally due to be settled warhin one year) or
COM-CULTENL,

2.3 Financial Instrismonts

Financial assets and financial babilines are recognized when the enuey becomes a parry
fo the contractual provisions of the financial instrament.

fa) Tirandal Assels

Arininz] recognition, the Foundaton measures a financs! asser ar its fir value
plus or mines, 1 the caze of a financial asset not ar faie valoe through profie or
iogs (FVTPL), transacton costs that are incremental or dizectly atributable o the
aequisidon or ssue aof the financial assct, such as fees and commizsions.
Transacron costs of Anancial assews carted ar BNV TPL are expensed outright in
profit or loss. Unless speciicelly mdicared o apply to cicher veat, the policies thal
follow apply to both vears.

i) Classfication, Measwrement and Redaszfication of Finanaal Asists

The classificanon and measarement of fnancial assets is driven by the entity's
business model {or manazng the fnandal assees znd the contractual cash flow
chatacteristics of the financial assetz. The classification and measurement of
financial assees are described as follows.

Financizl assets are measured at amorozed cost of both of the following
conditions ate ek

& the asset 15 held withm the Foundsnon’s buziness model whose objecnve is
to hold financial assers in order to collect conactual cash flows

b

(“hold o collect™); and,

* the contractual terms of the Insrument give ose, an specified dates, 1 cash
fHows that are solely payment of principal and interest (3PP on the
principal amount outstanding.



Al of the Foundapon's financial assers meer these coteria and are messoared
imeially ar fair value plus transacoon costs. These zre subsequently measored at
amordzed cost uaing the cffecnve inreeestmethod, less any mmpairment in vahie.

Where the business model is 1o hold asgets o collect contracrual cash Aows, the
Foundaton assesses whether the financaal mstruments® cash flows represent
PP In makmmg ths assessment, the Foundation considess whether the
contractual cash Hows are consistent with a basic lending arrangemens, e,
interest includes only consideraton for the amie value of money, ceedat ok,
other basic lending nsks and 2 profir margin that is consistent weith 4 brasic
lending arrangerment [see Note 3.1(h))-

Where the contsactual tesms nteduce exposure 10 tsh o voladhoy thar are
inconsistent with a basic lending armangement, the celated finzncial asser s
classified and measured ac FVTPL, The Foendaton™s fnancial asses ot
smortzed cost are presented in the statement of Anancial posibon as Cash,
Loans Receivable, Other Recervables and Rental Dieposits. Cashiancludes cash
on hand and demand deposis, which penerally eari interest s dailv bank
deposit rates and are subject w msiymuficant changes i value,

Finencis] sssets measured ar amoerozed cost are included i current assets,
excepe tor those with mamintics prearer than 12 monchs afer the end of
reporting period, which are classtfied as non-currenr assets

If applicatle, the Foundation can only seclassify fAnancial assets if the
objecove of 11s business model for managing those Gnancial assets changes.
Accondingly, the Foundaton @ required o reclassly financial assers: (1) from
amarozed costto FVTPL, af the objecave of the business model changes so
that the amomzed cost entena are no lonper met; and, (1) from FYTTIL w
amartzed cost, if the abjective of the business mode] changes so that the
anartzed cost criterss start 1o be met and the charcrensuc of the
inztrsnent’s contractual cash flows meer the amoretized cost crirena,

A chanpe w the objectve of the Foundation's buginess model will tzke effecr
only at the beginning of the next reporting period following the change in the
business model

il Effeciee Tnterert Baie Metbvd g Inierest dncore

Interest mcome 18 cecognized using the effecdve interese rare (EIR) method
for all Anancial instrumen: messured at amornized cost. The EIR is the rate
that exactly discounts estmared funure cash receips through the expecred hic
of the Anancial instoment or, when appropriate, 2 shorter peried, to the net
eareving amount of the financial asset.

Interest income from cesh i banks 15 recognized as meerest accroes b ng
into account the effecive vicld of the asser.

The Foundation caleulates mterest meome by applyng che BIR to the gross
carrying amount of fnancial assets other than eredic-impaired assets,
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The Foundaton recognizes revenue from mircofinancing acrivines in profit or
loss for the interest income on all instruments messured at amarazed cost
using the effective interest method, Unearned revenue from microfinancing
acavifies are tecognized dunng the month of disburzement and subsequently,
carned as revenne, based on the effecove inrerest method of sccounting, as

the loan is fully collected from the memhbers.

The effectrve interest method s 0 merhod of ealeulating the amortized costof
a fnancizl asser o a fnancial kabdity and allocanng the income aver the
relevant pericd, The EIR is the rate that exactly discounrs estimated future
cash flows theough the expected wseful life of the fnancial metrument ara
shorter penod, where appropriate, to the net carrying amnount of the Aaancial
asset or financial lability. The LIR = caleulared by kang inco account any
dhscount or preminm on acquisidon, fees and cost that are integral part of
effecive interest mte. Further, the Foundadon esdmares cash flows by
considering all conteactual tenms of the financz] insmaments,

Cinee the recorded value of a Anancial asser or group of similar financia] assers
has beent reduced due to an me:urmt nt loss, Interest ncome contnues o be
recogmzed using che orpinal EIR used o discounn the future recoverable cash
flexass,

For financial assets thar have become credit-umpaired subsequent w matial
recognition, interest mectne is caleulated by applyng the EIR to the net
carrying amount of the Gnancisd assets {after deduction of the loss allowanee).
IF the asset 1 no longer crediz-impaired, then the caloulation of interest
Imeorne reverts to the grass basis. For financial assets that were credir:
impaired on inital recognidon, interest meome 15 caleulaced by applving a
credit-adjusted EIR 1o the amortized cost of the asset. The caleulidon of
nrercst incodne does not revert 1o o gross basis, even if the credic tisk of the
asset Improves,

dempanrment af Dinancial Assets

At the end of the reporanp penod, the Foundanen assesses and recopmizes
allowance for expected credin losses (BCL) on its Aoancial assets messured at
amortized cost, The measurement of ECL wvolees considerznon of broader
range of informaton that is available without undue cost or efforr at the
teportng date sbout pase events, current condifions, and reasonable and
supportable forecases of funire economic conditions (e, Eum-an_:-l.::.r:’::ir-_E
miormanon) that may affect the collectability of the future cash flows of the
financial assers. Measurement of the ECL 15 decermoned by a probalbdite-
welghred estimate of credin losses over the expected life of the financial
instrurnents evaluated based on a range of possible sulcome (see Note 4.1

For financial assets measered ar amornzed cost, the allowance for credit losses
is hased on the ECL associated with the prolabdity of defaulr of a financial
instrutnent in the next 12 months, unless there has bheen a sipribicant increase
1 credit osk (SICR] since the onpinadon of the financial assee, in such case, a
hfetene ECL for a puschased or ogpinated credit impaired, the allowsnes for
credit losses 15 based on the change in the FCL over the Iife of the asset. The
Foundation recopmized a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting dare,



The FFoundadon determines whether there has been o SICR far fnancial asset
since inital recopmiton by companing the risk of default ocourdng over the
expected life of the Anancial asser between the reporang date and the date of
the initsal recopninon. In making this assessment, the Foundaton considers
both quantitatve and gualitatve informaton thar may indicate an actual or
expected deceriomtion of the credit quality of the Anancial assers,

The key elements used in the calculation of BCL arc as follows:

o Probabeliy of Defawit (PLY) — 15 an esdmase of likelihood of default over a piven
titne horizon,

o Lasr Crven Difauit (LG 1)) — 3z an estimare of loss ansmg in case whese 3
default occurs ar s grven ome. 1t is based on the difference berween the
contractual cash flows of @ dnancial mstroment due from g counterparty and
those thar the Foundaton would expeer ro receive, including the realization
of any callateral,

o Expanwes af Defanit (EAL) — represenrs the geoss carrving emount of the
Linaneaal mstruments in the event of default which pertains ro i amortised
cost,

The Foundation recognizes an impateenent loss 1 profic or loss for all
financial instruments subjected to mpaimment assessmenr with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount theough a loss allowance
2CCaunt.

fiey Drerecopmtion of Dinancal Assets

The Anancial assets (or where appiicable, a part of s Boancial asset or pare of
a proup of Anancial assets) are derecognized when the contractual dghes o
receive cash flows from the financal instraments expize, or when the financiz]
ascets and all substantial nsks and sewards of ownerstup have heen rransferred
to-anather party. [F the Fonndation neither mansters nor reming substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues 1o contal the tansferred
asset, the Foundauon recopnizes its retained inrerest in the asset amd an
assovtated lability for amounts i may have 1o pay. 1 the Foundsnon rerains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of & transferred financial
asset, the Foundanon continnes 1o recogmize the financial asser and also
recogmzes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds recerved,

{8) Financial Liabilities

Financial lakilives, which include microsavings (composed of Capatal

Budd-up [CBU] and Locked in Capital Build-vp [LCBLUY, loans payable and orher
linbibdes (exchuding tax-related liabiliges), are recopmzed when the Foundaton
becomes a parry ro the contractual terms of the insrrument. These are madally
recognized at their faie value and subsequently measueed st amortized cost using
effective mlerest method for mamrities beyond one year, less seclement
payements,

Al inrerest-related charges meurred on financial labilices are cecopmized as
expense n profit or loss as part of Project Costs account under Expenses in the
staternent of comprehensive income,
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Loans pavable are raised for support of long-term funding of operadons. This s
recoymuzed at proceeds received, nel of direcr issue costs,  Finanec chagges,
mncluding premiums payable vn settlemene or re r]r.mpl:l-uﬂ and direcr ssue costs,
are charged ro profit or loss oo an acerual basis using the EIR method and are
added o the carrying amount of the instrament 1o the extent that they aze not
sertled in the period in which they arise.

Financial halalities are derecognized from the statement of Gnancil positon ool
when the obhlipanons are extnguished either through discharee, cancellation or
expitation. The difference between the careving amount of the financial labilie
dezecopnized and the considerarion paid of pavalble is recognized in probie or loss.

fe) Ofiesttng Finauaal Initruments

Financial assets and fnancial babilites are offser and the tesulting nes

amount, considered as a smygle fnancial asser or financial liabedlicy, i reparted in
the srarement of financial positon when the Foundation currendy has legally
enforceable npht o set-off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
seftle on o net bass, or realize the asser and sette the liabilicy sinulaneously. The
tight of off-set must be available at the end of the repor eng pericd, that s, It is
not condngent on furote event It most alsa be enforceable in the normal course
of buziness, 1n the event of default, and in the event of insolvency or banksuptey;
and must be lepally enforceable for both enrire and all countemparries o the
financial mstriments, '

24 Orher Assers

Chther assers permain to other resources contrelled by the Foundation as 1 cesult of mast
events. They are recognized in the Gnanci] sratements when it is probable thar the
furure cconomic benefits will flow to the Foundanon and the asset has o cose or value
that can be measured relishly,

2.5 Property and Equipment

]’:np:rq- and LqulmenL are staled at cost less sccumulated depreciaton and
amornzanon and any impaimnent i valoe,

The cost of an asset compnses 1ts purchase price and directy annbutable coses of
bringingr the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expendituees for
sddinons, majorimprovements and renewals are capitshized while expendinres for
repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred,

Depreciation s computed on the straight-line bass over the estimated useful kees of
the assets as Follows:

ﬂui]djng 15 FEATS
Equipment and vehicles 5 years
Furmture and fxrares 3 vears

Office improvements ate atnoctzed over the estimared usehal life of the IMpEoVEments
af five years, or the term of the lease, whichever is sharter.
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The Foundation’s property and equipment aze subject o impaltment esting whenever
events or changes in circumstances mdicate that the carying amount may oot be
recoverable.

Impaimment loss for properry and equipment 1 recopmized for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts which 1 the hapher of s fur
value less costs to sell and s value in vse. In determining value in use, management
estitnates the expecred furare cash fows from such asset and derermanes the saitable
interest rate in-order o calculace the present value of those cash Aows. The dae used
for impairment lesting procedures are dizectly linked to the Foundznon's latest
approved budpet, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of asset enhancements.
Discount factors determuned reflecr manapement’s assessment of respecuve risk
profiles, such as market and asset-specilic risk factors.

Property and equipment is subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment
loss previcusly recogmized may no longer exist,. An impaioment loss s teversed 1f the
recoverable amount of the property and equipment exceeds ity carmylng amout.

The residual values, cspmated uzefol lives, and dr_q':n:r:r_':i&ﬂun end amprtzaton metho
of propery ; and eguipment re reviewed and adjusred if appropnate, at the end of eack
cepocting period.

An itemn of property and equipment, mcluding the relared accomulared depreciznon and
amordzation and any mnpaiement losses, 13 dezecopnized upon disposal o when no
furure economic benefits are expected to anse from the contnued use of the asset.

Any pain ar loss adsng on derecogninon of the asset fralculated as the difference
berween the net dispozal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) 1 mechuded in
profit or loss in the year the stem 1 derecognized.

2.6 Provisions and Conrnngencres

Pravisions are recopized when present oblipatons will probably lead o an aurflow of
econoinie tesources and they can be estimared reliably even if the ttmmg or amount of
the outflow may still be uncersain. A present obligation arizes from the presence of a
legal ar ennseructive obligation thar has resulted from pastevents.

Provisions are measured at the estimared expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporung
period, including the risks and uncertun ties associated with the present obligaton.
Where there aré a number of similar oblpadoens, the likelbood thar an ourflow will be
required in settiement s determined by considenng the class of oblgauons az 2 whele,
When time value of money is material, long-term provisons are discounted to thelr
present values using a pre-tax rate that reflecrs marker assessments and the nsks speaific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due ro passape of ome s recopoized a5
interest expense, Provisions aze reviewed at the end of each reporting penod and
adjusted 1o reflect the curzent best esumate.

In those cases, where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations 15 considered improbable or remote, or the amnount 1o be provided for
cannot be meassured reliably, no Labiliey 15 recogrized the financil statements,
Sirnilatly, possible inflows of economic benefits mo the Foundanon thar do nat vet meet
rhe recognition |_.;|_'.|[|_.1':|.4. of an asser are considered contngenr assers, hence, are not
recopnized o the fAnancial statemenss.



.13.

Cin the other hand, any reimbursement thar the Foundaton can be virmally certain o
collect from a third party with respect 1o the oblipizon recopnized as ) separate asset
not exceeding the amownt aof the related peovision,

27 Expense Recognition

Costs and expenses are recopmized in profitor loss upon valizaton of the goods
and/ or services ar at the dare they ate incurred. Any fisance costs are reparted in
profr or [oss on an accrual basis.

28 Leases = Foundation as Lesscc

Far any new conteacts entered into, the Foundadon considers whether & contrace is, or
containg, a lease. A lease is defined as 2 contracr, or part of 2 contract, that conveys the
tight to use an asset {the underlying asset] for a penod of dme in exchanpe for
considerabon. Teo apply chis definirion, the Foundation assesses whether rhe contract
meets three key evaluadons which are whether:

e the contract contains an identifled asser, which 1 either explicitly identified m the
confract or implicitly specified by bemyg idennfied at che ame the asset is made
avallable to the Foundation,

# the Foundagon bas the dghit to obeain substanizally all of the cconomic benefits
from use of the sdennfied asset throughour the perod of use, considering its righrs
within the defined scope of the contract; and,

s he Foundation has the nghe to direct the use of the identified asser throughour the
penod of use. The Foundaton assesses whether it has the ripht to direcr *how and
for whar purpose’ the asser is ssed throughout the penod of use.

The Foundaoon has elected o account for shore-temm leases and leases of low-value
A55ELs Usng the [roacics :}:ptL!.u::uta. Iasread of TeCOgIuzIng A 1'jg'm oflonse geser and
lease Liabilite, the pavments in relancn oo these are recoghized as an expense in profir of
loss on a2 scraiphr-line basis aver the lease term.

28 Empfopes Benefits

The Foundation provides post-employment benefits to employees through a defined
benefit plan, defined contmibubon plans, and other emplayvee benefies which are
recogmized a5 follows:

fai  Nhars-terws Dowgioper Benefits

Short-tezm emplovee benefits include salaries, contriburions o povemment
agencics, paid vacation and sick leave, and non-menetary benefits, bur not
termination henefits, expected to be setded wholly before ovelve months after the
end of the annual reportng penod in which the emplovees render the related
SECviCes,

These benefits are recognized in profit or loss when the services are rendered,
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Post-emppisyment Defined Benefir Blay

A defined benefic plam is & post-emplovment plan that defines an amount af
post-employment benedit that an employee will receve on retirement, usually
dependent on voe or more facrors such as age, vears of service and sulary. The
legal wbliganon for any henefits from this kind of post-cmployment plin remains
with the Foundaoon, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have
been acquired, The Foundstion's defined benefit pension plan covers all cegrular
full-tirme emplovess.

The labiity recognized in the starement of Anancial positon for & defined benefit
plan g5 the present value of the defined benefir oblymuon ar the end of the
repornng period. The defined benefit obliganon 15 caleulated annually by
wdependent actuaties using the projected unit credit method, The present value
of the defined benefit obligation 15 determined by discounting the esumated
furure cash outflows for expected benefic pavments using a discount rate derived
from the interest rates of 2 zero coupon government bonds Jusing the reference
rates published by Bloomberp ering its valuaton techoolopy, Bloomberg
Valuation (BVAL)], that are denominated m the currency i which the benefirs
will be patd and that have tenms Lo matunty spproxamating to the terms of the
relared post-employment hability. BVAL provides evaluated prices that are based
an market observatons from contmibuted sources.

Kemeasurements, comprsing of actuzrial gains and losses ansing from experience
adjustments and changes in actuanal assumptions are reflected irnmeditely in

the statement of financial position with a charpe or credit recopnized in ather
comprehensive ncome in the period in which chey anse. Interest copense is
caleulated by applying the discount rate ar the beginning of the periad, taking
account of any changes in the ner defined henenr liability during cthe period as a
resull of benefic payments. Interest expense is reported as part of Finanee costs
under the Project Costs account o the ststement of comprebensive income,

Past-setvice costs are recopmized immedetely i profic ar loss in che period of @
plan amendment or curtailment.

Pagi-epstioyment Defined Coniributsan Plans

A defined contributon plan is a post-emplovment plan under which the
Poundadon pays fixed conmbutons into an independent endty (such as the
social Security System). The Foundation has no legal or construcrive obligations
te pay turther conmbotons afier payment of the fixed coatnbuton, The
coneributions recognized in respect of defined contobudon plans are expensed as
they fall due. Liabilities or assets may he recognized i nnderpayment or
prepayment has occurred and are normally of a shorm-tenn nature.
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fal  Termimarion Benefit

Termination benefirs are payable when emplovmenr is terminzsed by the
Foundation before the normal retirement dare, or whenever an emploves aeceprs
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Foendation FECOENIZeS
rerrnination benefits at the earlier of when ir on no lenger withdraw the affet of
such henefits and when it recognizes costs for a res tructuring that is within the
scope of PAS 37, Prowsony, Contingens Loabiditior and € antiwgent Avedn, and involves
the pavment of terminanon benelits. In the case of an offer made 10 encoumage
voluntary redundancy, the terminadon benefits are measured based on the
number of emplovees expected to sccept the offer. Benefics falling due more
than 12 months after the end of each reporting perod are discounted te their
presenr value.

fed  Compeaiated Absesces

Compensated absences are recopnized for the number of paid leave days
{including hobiday enctlement} remaining ar the end of the TeparOng period.
They are included in Other Liabitites aceount in the stacemient of finasncial
postion gt the undiscounted amount that the Foundstion expects to pay as 2
result of the unused entidement.

210 Fond Bafance

Capital contribution represear the inital contribution recetved by the Foundation at the
statt of ils operatons.

Greneral fund represent all current and pror period results of operations as reporbed in
the proft or loss secuon of the smrement of comprebensive income, Conssstent wirh
the Foundaton’s repstered actviries, all of these are flowed back into its aperations.

Remeasuremnent of pesr-employment defined benefie plan pertains 1o the ner
cumnulatve acraarial gans and losses ansing from cxperience adjusrments and changes
in acruanal assumptions used in the derermination of the post-cmplovinent defined
henefit obligaton.

21 Related Larty Trunsactions and Rela tionships

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or oblipations between the
Foundation and its related parnes, repardless whether a price 15 chaped,

Pasties are consudered o be related if one pacty bes the ability tw contral the ather party
or exercise significant influencs over the uther party in making financial and operating
dectstons, These pardes include: (a) individuals ewning, diceedly o indirectly through
ane of more intermedianes, conerol ar are controlled by, or under comtman control
with the Foundation; (b} associares; and, (¢} individuals owning, directly or indi rectly, a0
interest i the vorng power of the Foundation that gives them significant infuence
over the Foundanion and close members of the family of any such individug),

In considenng each possible celared parry reladonshup, attenton iz disected o the
substance of the relationship and not tmerely on the legal form,
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212 Evenes after the End of the Reporiing Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additonal informanon about the Foundation's
statement of fnancil position at the end of the reporing period Gdjustng evenr) is
reflected 10 the financial statements. Post-year end evenrs that are not adjusting events,
it any, are diselosed when matedal ro the financial statements,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparanon of the Foundaton's financial stacements in accordance with PFRS
requites manageiment 1o make judgments and esnmarcs that affect the amounts

reported mn the financial starements and relared notes. Judpments and estimanes are
contnually evalusced and are based on histonical experence and other factors, meluding
exprctadons of furre events that are believed 1o be reasonable gynder the circumsrances,
Actual resulrs may ulimately differ from these estimates.

A1 Crrcal Management Judpments in Apphing Accounting Policies

In the process of applving the Foundation’s aceounting policies, management has made
the following judgments, apact from those involving esamanon, which have the maos:
signibicant effect on the amounts recopnized o the Goandal esoimages:

il Derermiination of B an Loanr Besivaide

The Foundaton applies the peneral approach in measuring the FCL for loans
receivaliles.

To measure the ECL, the expected logs rates were caleulared over a period of

five vears and the corresponding histoneal credie losses expenenced wichin

such pedod. The histordeal loss rates are adjusied o reflect curzent and
forward-looking information on maceocconomic fictors affectng the ability of the
councerpartes to settle the tecervables, The Foundation has idendfied the gross
domestc prodoct and Bangko Sentral ng Pilipimas borrowing rate to be the most
relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the histoncal loss rares based on expected
changes i this factor.

The Poundation's mansgement intends to repularly calibrate (e, vn an

annual hasis) the rate 1o consider the histonical credit loss experience with
forward-looking informaton (Le., (orecast cconomic conditions). Details abour
the ECL on the Foundadon®s loans receivable is disclosed in MNote 4.1,

(& Evalpation of Buswess Model Applesd i Masaging Finanaal Instesmentr

The Foundanon develeped a business model which reflect how it manapes its
portfolio of Bnancis] instruments. The Foundagion’s husiness model need nor he
assessed at enaty level or as a whole but shall be applied ar the level of @ portfolo
of financial instruments {le., group of finandal instrumenes thar are managed
together by the Foundadoen) and not on an instromenc-by-instrament basis

{r.e., not based on itenton or specific charactenstics of individual fnancial
Instrurmen L),
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In derermining the clagsificatzon of 2 Boancial insrmument under PERS 9, the
Foundation evaluates in which busmess medel 2 Anancial mstrument or 2 postfolio
of financial mstraments belong o aking into consideration the ohjecrives of eack
husiness model established by the Foundanon (e, generatng acceual Income,
direct matching to a specific lahilnd as those relate to the Foundannn's tracling
strategles.

T-‘.If.fr."g e Cand Blowr & aracterina af { Fimanal Arseer and :"_':i-,w.l‘m.-.q.nf-- Fouadiaiian |::If
e Bastaress Moced

lnn determiming the classificanon of financial assets under PEFRS 9, the Foundation
assesses wherher the contractual tering of the financal assets gree nse on speaified
daces tocash flows that are 5P oo the prncipal outstanding, with interest
representing dme value of money and credit nsk associated with the prncipal
atnount cutstanding. The assessment as oo whethe: the cash flows nmeet the ese s
trade in the currency 1o which the financial asset is denominated. Ane other
contractual cerm that changes the oming or amount of cash Jows {unless i is a
vanshle inrerest rare that represents titme value of money and credit sk does oot
meet the amorized cost cotenia. 1o cases where the relationship berween the
passage of dine and the nterest rate of the Anancal instrumene may he i imper fect
Enown as modified ome value of morey, the Foundation assesses the maodified
tme value of money feamare o determine whether the Bnancial instrement s il
meets the SPPI crrerion. The ohjccnive of the assessment is to determine how
different the undiscounted contracheal cash fows could be From the andiscounted
cash flows char would anse if the time valoue of money element was oot modified
{the henchmark cash fows). I the resulbng difference is sipnificant, the SPPI
criterion 15 nol met In view of this, the Foundation consicders the effect of the
modifzed bme value of money element in each reporting perod and comulanvely
over the hife of the fnancial insorument.

lf more than an infrequent sale is made oot of a portfolio of financial assets carred
ar amordzed cost, an entry should assess whether and how such sales sre
consstent with the ohjecnve of collecting contracruzal cash flows.

Recopmitivn of Provicgans and Contfngencier
Judgment 15 exercised by management to diztnguish betaeen provisions and

contingencies. Palicies on recopution of provisions and comtingencies are
disciszed in Mote 2,6 and celevant diseloseres are presenred in Note TR

3.2 Key Sources of Esamation Lincertainty

The fellowing are the key assumpnons concerning the furure, and other key sources of
estmation uncertanty at the end of the reporting periods, that have 2 sipnificant sisk ol
causing a material adjusment o the carrving amounnts of assets and liahilides within the
next reportng petiod:

|"'l'5',.-I

Estimation of Adwane for ECL

The measurement of the allowance for BCL on finanaal assets ar amorteed cost
15 an area that requires the use of signaficant assumptions about the fumure
ecunumic condimens and credic behavior (ep,, Ekelihood of members and other
counterparoes defaulung and the resultng losses), Explanatgon of the mpurs,
assumptions and estmaton vsed i measunng FOL s furher detziled 1n

Meote 4.1
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The methodology and assumpoons used in estimanng FOCL allowance are
revicwed eepulacly by the Foundadon to reduce any differences betyeen loss
esninates and actual loss experience.

The carrying value of loans and other receivables and renwl deposits and the
a:ml}-sis ot allomsrznce foe impﬁ-j:rmr:m an such fnancial assers are shawn in
Notes 4.1, 7, and 18, respecovely.

rtfapzation af Useined Liver of Property and Egaitemeat

The Foundapon esumates the useful bves of property and equipment based on the
pedod over which the zssers are expected to be available {or use. The esgmared
useful lives of praperty and equipment are reviewed penodically and aze updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates doe to physical wear and wear, technical
ot commercial ohsolescence and lepal or other linties on the e of the assets.

The carrying amouncs of property and equipment are anadveed m Note B Based
ot mEnagement’s assessmene as of December 31, 2020 a0d 2009, there s no
change in estmared wsetul lives of property and equipment durng those years.
Actual resules, however, may vary due to changes 10 estimates hrought about by
changes in factors mentoned above.

Tepairament of Drapenty and Eguitement

The Foundabon’s policy on estomatng the impairment of property and eguipment
15 discussed in dersil in Note 2.5 Though management believes that the
assumphons used in the esnmanen of the carrying amount of the assets are
appropriate and reasonable, sipnificant changes 10 these assumprans may
materially affect the assessment of recoverable amount and any reseling
impaitiment loss could have a matenal adverse effece on the reseles of operations,

Mansgement has assessed that there are no indications of impairmesst oo the
Foundaton's property and equipment at the end of each reporting period; hence,
ne imparment losses are required to be recoprized on those assets o 2ny of the
reporting periods,

Vadvation of Post-employment Dvefinesd Benefit Oblegation

The dererminaton of the Foundaton’s oblipaton and cost of post-cmployment
defined benefit s dependent on the selecton of certam assumpoons used by an
independent actuary i calculadng such amounts. Those assumnpuons mclude,
among others, discount rates and salary e increase. A sipmifican: chanpein any
of these actuanal assumpnons may generally affect the recopnized expense, other
comprehensive incomme or losses and the cacrymg amounr of the postemployment
benefit obligation i the next reportng period.

The amounts of post-employment benefit obligaton and expense and an analysis
of the movements in the estmated present value of post-employment benefit
obligaton, as well as the analysis of the sensmviny of such oblyation to the

-E]mng:z in sipnificane assumprions are T!-r:!.-ar.nmr] in Mote 14,2,



L i8-

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Foundabon is exposed to certain finsnaal nsks in reladon re financial instrutments,
The Foundabon's bnancial assers and halnhnes by category are summanized in Note 5.
The main rypes of nsks are credic nsk and lguidity nsk.

The Foundavon's nek manapement is eocrdinated with s IOT, end focuses on acnvely
securing the Foundabon’s shore-to-mediem term cash dlows by mimiminng the exposure
to financial markets

The Foundanon does nor engage i the LrElditLg of fimancial assers for ::p::r:uirlril-'n
purposes nor does icwnte opoons.

The mose sipnificant financial nsks to which the Foundanon iz exposed to are described
i the bedow and succeeding papes

L1 Credr Risk

Credit msk i= the nsk thata counterparty may fail 1o discharge an n]ﬂignrinﬂ roy rhe
Foundaoon. The Foundaton s exposed 1o this nsk for financial insteamments amang
feom grantng loans and advances re is members and its employees, secunty deposit o
lessars and placing deposits oo variows local banks.

The Foundation contnuously monitors defaolt of it members and other
counterpartes, identfed either individually or by groups, and incorporates the
informanon ioto its credit nsk controls, The Foundaton's policy 1s 1o deal only with
creditworthy countemparties.

The maamumn credit nsk exposure of financial assets 1= che car FYIRE AMOLNE of the
financial assels as shown in the statements of financial position or in the detailed
analysis provided in the notes 1o the financial statements, 05 sumemadzed below,

Poles a2 2014
Cash 4 F 2493914,763 P 2503 240,804
Loans recetvable - net T 20,242, 696,402 20474 210,174
Cither receivables 7 10,918,106 34,726,117
Renel deposits |5 38,680,757 37973632
P22,786,210,118  P23.052,156,76!

fir) Tk

The credil nsk for cash 12 considered neglipible, since the counterparties are repuable
hanks wath high quality external credit ratngs, Cash in banks are insured by the
Philippine Peposic Insurance Corporaton up ro a maxmum coverage of P3O00000 for
every depositor per banking lnsatution,
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The Foundanon's policy is 1o perform an assessment st the end of each reporbng
perod, whether & Gnanctal nsrument’s credic risk has increased sypificandy since
ininal recoprution. The Foundadon considers the change in the gsk of defaul
vecurnng over the remaining life of the inancial instesement. In accordance with the
Foundamon’s policy, a financial asset at amortized cost 15 assessed for impairment based
on the :’nilu;m-iﬂg SIHEEE

Stagre 1: When a finanoial asset st amortzed cost 15 st recognuzed, the Foundadion
recogmizes credit losses based on the rwelve-month ECLs, Stage 1 also includes
facilites where the credir risk has improved and securite hus been reclassified from
Srape 2,

srage 2: When a financial assec at amortzed cost has shown a 3ICR simee onginaton,
the Foundaton recopmizes an allowance for the lifeome ECL. Stage 2 also includes
facilivies where the credit dek has improved and the instrument has been reclissified
from Stage 3.

Stage 3: When a financial asser ar amornzed cost is considered as credic impaired, the
Foundaton recognizes an allowance for the lfetime ECL.

Based on historcal informaton about the members” defaule rares, management have
determined that any loan with une day past due 15 conzidered to pose o S1CR.
Therefone, all loans that are past due are considesed 10 be under Stage 2 or 3, whescin
lifetirme ECL s applied.

The kev elements used in the caleulation of ECL are as follows:

* Prodebility of Defasdt — 1= an estmate of likelthood of default aver 2 given ame
horizon, A defaule may anly happen at a cermain ome over the assessed period, if
the instrument has no been previously derecopmuzed and 15 sall in the partfolic,

* Lais Criven Dhefaly — Is an estimate of Joss ansing 10 case where 2 default oreeurs at
a given tme, It s based on the difference between the contrtactual cash Bows of a
fnancial instroment due fromea counterpasty and those that the Foundabon would
expect to receve, including the realizanon of any callaceral.

* Exgorure af Defandt — represents the gross carrving amount of the financial
inscrements subject 1o the impaimment caleulsfion.

The ECL 3 determined by projecring the PIJ, LGD, and EAD for each funsre period
and for cach collecove segment. These three components are mulriplied rogether and
adjusted for the lkelivood of survaval (e, the exposure has nor prepaid or defaulted in
an earlier month). The lifetime PD 1s developed by applying 2 maruzity profile o che
12-month P13, The maruriry profile Inoks at how defaults develop on a portfolio from
the point of minal recognition through the lifeume of the loans. The mamity profile
based on historical observed data snd 15 sssumed to be the same across all assecs within
the portfolic. This is supported by histosical analysis, The 12-manch and lifetime Ps
ace determuned based oo the expected pavment profife of the members,

The calculaton of ECL mcorporates forvard-lnoking information, The Foundation
hag performed historical analysis and idenrified the key econvmic value facror affecung
credit msl and ECL for rhe loan pr_unfr_u]u_m
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Loans receivables are secured by the microsavings contriburions of all acrive members,
and the Foundation is not expozed o any significant credit nsk exposure to any single
counterparty. Significant pomion of the Foundaton's loans receivable pertain: o
claims frotm vanouws groups of members with simalar characreristics, However, the
Foundaton has no experience of symificant members” default and hissorical losses
from any single group of counterparties,

Bazed an the ECL model, the Foundanon provides an allowance for impairment in
2020 op stage 1, 12-month ECL, stape 2 and 3, Weume BECL, Toans recevable
atmounung o P2O07 163 211, PA1,173.775 and P426,260,734, respectively, Further, in
20149, the ECL on stage 1, 12-month BECL, stagee 2 snd 3, Iiferime FCL, loans receivabile
amounted o P1O52154 844, PA2,947 050 and P24,243,356, respectively. The
impatment loss on ECL is presented as Impairment foss, under Project Cost account
(ree MNotes 7.1 and 130,
The ECL on other recervables mainly pertain ro loans and advances granted to the
Foundapon’s emplovees which are collected through salary deduction. Thus,
considered to be fully recoverable bazed on the management's assessment

(e Mooe 72

A2 Liguidie Risk

The Foundaton mansges its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt
servicing payments far long-term fnancial kabilioes as well as cash outflows due in s
day-to-day business. Liquidity needs are momeored in various tme bands, ona
day-to-day and week-to-week busis, as well as oo the basiz of @ rolling 30-day
projection. Long-tern bguidity needs for a siv-manrh and one-year perind are
identfied monthly.

The Foundaton mamtaing cash to meet ics liguidity requiremencs for up e Gl-day
penods. Funding for long-term lquidity needs s additonally secured by an adequare
amuount of committed credit facthives and the sbility to consistently maintan an
effective collection um-vver. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, portfalio ar tsk s
14.36% and D40%, respectively.

As ar December 31, 2020, the Foundaton's Gonancial labilites have contractual
enararities which are presented below

Wikluin WEhin By nas veur kg
Minges bmonche B2 pnonche wichin five yeas . Togsl
ERirisaniyg i I 11570, 200,032 1 - F . F1.970,206,032
Loans pavakble i 432,570, HIT LR R S FIT.RE0,50F  1,6LT.606,450
U hier lalaboes i A7 TMR RS s E _ATETMA5Y

PLaAvesdbi6s B UTATEIH E EIRAGOMT PLAIEEETE

This compates to the matunty of the Foundation's financial liabilisies as of
December 31, 2019 a= follows:

Within Whtle Afr 1Ly lsust
—bomes - fomomths —12monibe  _ ewlgnlveypeass  Toqpl
Microsavings i EILimasT e P - PILGTLETT, 074
Lrarepayatle n AL GE 5D b R TALY B2 40 R 1370, 853233
Crher Eabilinis 1 A A N | D A A0S N5

ELLMSGIE0EE L ZIANENT B dRAMGA0E PI3140i6041
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The conmachual matudues reflecr the gross cash ows, which may differ {fzom the
carryving values of the liabilides ar the end of the reporting periods.

CATEGORIES AND OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
5.1 Carrving Amounis and Fair Values by Caregary

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial assers and Anancial kabilides ac
amortzed cost presented in the stieements of fnancis! positon are shown below.

= s ali
Cemyving Fair urving I"ais
e ¥alugs Vaboes Vi _ Ml
HMinanciel Assers

e, [ [ P B S LR L L T O ST U A L I3 Tk T
Lanane receivatie - nst 7 ID2AZADEANE  MEAGLANY  Z0474094,172 AT 216,174
L ¥her sererrakley L9916 A0 PO, WL THE T TR
Frmkal deqemit: LH — BLGBOTST JEARGTED MUTASTE ok ALLRF e
E_LLTE6LI5 108 PENVESAM0AN  L240sT a0 0] ¥ 25057150707

Fnanca! Lrabdines
?.I':rn,:sltj'# 1 PoOLLa AN 510 P O0 a4 554 51 F‘l""-r""l'.!.l"" [ EURRE 1R  EE
Lesseme papable ] L6533 1047, 382008 1219 KL KR
Uhhis babditiss 1 ATETMGESY TR _ GReMISEE _ ieasrunig

EEREETTT ELLZH IS JU36R0e50s L1 68em sy

Manapemenr considers that the careving amount of the Foundavon's financial gssers
and financial linbilities measured at amordzed cost approximates the fir values due 1o
s shorr-rerm duraton exCEpt non-current ioans ]}.'q.'.';h]e:.

5.2 Fair Value Hyerarchy

In accordance with PERS 13, Fair [<ainve Mearoremsenis, the fair valoes of Anancial assers
and financial babilide: and non-financial asscts which are messured ar fair value on 4
recurming or non-recuring basis and those assers and labilites not measured at fair
value but for which fair valoes are disciosed in accordance with other relevane PERS,
are categnnzed mio three levels based on the significance of inputs used 1o measure the
fair value, The fair value hierarchy bas the following levels:

*  Level 1 quoted poces {unadjusted] i actve markets for idenncal assers or
lizhilinics that an entity can access at the measuremenc date;

®  Level Z:mputs other than guoted poces included witun Level 1 thar ate
observable for the asser or labiliey, either direerly (Le,, as prices) ur indirectly
{i.e., denved fromm prices); aud,

e Level 3: mputs for the asset or lability thar are nor hased on ohsercable
maztket data {unobservable inputs).

The level within which the asser ar liability is classified is determined based on the
lowest level of significant input ro the far value measurement.

Far purposes of determineng the market value ar Level 1, 2 matket is reparded as acove
if quoted prices are readsly and regularly available from an t'{Lh‘lﬂ;_lf‘ dealer, broker,
industry group, prcing service, o mgu]amr;. apeney, and those prices represent acrual
aitd repularly accurring marker transactions on an arm'’s lengeh basis
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For financial assets and finencial liabilides measured 2t amorfzed cost, mansgement
considers that their carrying amounts approximate or equal o their fur valoes. Based
an management review ofits fingneml msruments measured atamortized cost, except
far cash which s conzsidered Level 1, all the rest sre determined o be Level 3 0 the fair
withie berarchy.

5.3 (ifsening of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

As of December 31, 2020 and 201%, the loans recervable and the relaced MICICSaY NS
are subject to offsetting, enforceable master nerong arrengements and simila
agreements, [he apreement between the Foundaton and its members allows for net
sertlement of the celevant financial assers and fnaneis! Gabilites when b the event the
member can no longer pay the amount due, In the absence of such an election,
financial asset= and financial liabidines wil be setdled nna ress basts, however, each
party to the masrer netting apreement or similar Agreement will have the aption to settle
all such amounis on g net basis in che evenr of defaule of the other party.

CASIT

The Foundsnion's cash in bank balance as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounred
te P2493,014.763 and P2,505 240,804, respectvely. Cash in banks pencsally eam
incerest at rates based on daily bank deposit ares.

Interest eammed from cash in banks amounted 1o 20,693 9249 and P34 251 28] m 2020
and 2019, respectively, and 15 presented as part of Other Revenues aceount in the
stalementy of comprehensive income (see Note 12).

None of the Foundanon's savings deposits were held a5 secutity for any of the

Frundaron’s babilities at the end of the reporing penods,

LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

These accounts include the following:
A1 Loans Hecelvable

Loans recelvables consise of the following as at Decemnber 31;

20 Hii0
Loans receirnhle P26,079,758,815 P23 858464 035
Unearned revenue from
fnaneiny activifies (. 2,442,464.603) (2244908611

23,637.204 212 21,613,555424
Allowance for Unpairoent (3, 394,5090,720) (1,130,330 354"

P20,242,696,493  [:20474,216,174

As of December 31, 2020 and 207149, the Foundarion has 1,823,960 and 1 863,781 wetve
members, respectively.
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Leans receivable represents micrafinance loans pranred o the Foundagon’s membets.
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Foundadon's highest amount of miciofinance
loan released to 2 single hormower 15 P30.0M, which is in compliance with
Memomandum Circular 3-2018 of the Microfinance NGO Regulatory Counel,

These loans have rerms of six monthe and are partally securee by the respeetive carrving
amounts of ticrosaviys of ndnadoal members (sce Nore 7). These loans are subject o
a nominal ate of 12.5% mterest and effectve rare of 26.1% a1l throughoor the six-
tnofth term. The interest camed from these loans amounted to P6,285,197.071 and
P7E 538 TRE i 2020 and 2010, respecovely, and aee shown as part of Revenue from
mecrofimancing scovioes accounr in the statemnents of comprehensive income.

In the carly part of 2020, the Foundaton stopped charging service fee amounung o
0.5% of every principal amount of loan released o each member  The service fee
eatned from these transacoons amounted 1o PE2,144 540 and P353,B65,905 in 2020 and
2019, respecovely, and are shown as part of Revenue fram mic rofinancing actvities in
the statements of comprehensive iIncome.

Loans recenable have been teviewed for tmparment. Certain recervables were found
to be impaized; hence, adequate amount of allowance for impairment bas been
recognized accomdingly (see WNote 4.1).

A reconciliiton of the allowance for 'meai rraenr ar the h{i.éﬁ_r]nn_inr_:_ and end of 2020 and
2014 s shown below,

MNore 2020 2011
Balance at beginning of year P 113903302680 1 BE3004 400
Impairment loss during the vear 13 2,585,402, 781 75,325 03%0
Wnre-off of receivables
previously provided
with allowance ( 330,044.311) ([ 2389HH 1HD
Balanee at end of year P 3394507920 21,139 339 250

In the evenr the member can na longer sertle the mmount due, the Foundadan may
apply the CHL and LCBL as pavinents to the loans recetvable.

Loans recemvable wotten-off in 2020 and 2014 Pl:rraiu to the mu;s:_;um_]j:]!: balioee of
loarns pranted 1o 43 9248 and 31,641 members or 2.5% and 1.7% of active members,
respoodvely.

A2 Ceher Recefvalifes

Cither receivables consist of personal and moldity loans, and noninrerest-beanng
advances granted to the Foundaton's personnel with ol careping amount of
PUL218,106 and P34,726,117 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respecrively.

The effecove interest rate of 21.3% for personal loans and 9.3% for mowreyele loans
ate charged i both of the reporting penods and zre recognized ae Interest income an
employee loans under Other Revenues account in the statetnents of comprehensive
income [see Note 12). These loans are pud by emplovees every pay period through
salary deductions,
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As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, other receivables were reviewed fior impairment
and none is considered impaired (see Note 4.1).

PROPERTY AND EQU

IPMENT

The pross carrying amotnts and accumulated depreciaton and amorization of property
and equipment at the begimning and end of 2020 and 2019 are shown helow.
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A reconeilution of the carrying amounts of property and equipment ar the beginmng
and end of 2020 and 201915 shown below,

Huildingr
and Office
Impravements

Bzalznce 51J-:|.|1||ar5- 1, 200,

net ot accemidaned

depussiitaea and

ADICIETIE AN Booo41,4%= 500
Addipuns 43,700 0151
[!Il.-p.m—ﬂhrir_m anid

zimurbEziaen chasges

fia the vear [ SODG3551;
Balanoe 21 Lecember 31, 20624,

et ol accumualaled

depeecizron and

urncTieation P 150200
Balance or Janmary 1, 2000,

nel ol zocumulazed

depactiation and

SMinrTiE [* 4581310
Sedelirians -
Depreciatom and

aroization chadpes

{ur ihe yeor i 41786410

|

Halance ar Ieosnher 51, 2015,
et of aecumaulazed
depEeciation ad
it

Poozlddaziu

Fumiture and Expuiganciil
— Fimtres ool Vehigles _ Taoml
I* 10 550 00 FOoAsma4an P 163059000
Ja17E087 TEARL TR
S (N R 1 QAT LAY [ T1.57< SN
F_8,567500 B HAG000 B 190,358,800
Foo 3346540 P am F 153,631,550
04,335,554 R25E 642 12501
SZNLA0F) {49314l 3, | df, 141
B 106 SR8 T00 B 13055300 i TR R 1LY
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The amonnt of deprecianon acd amarnzanon is allocated and reported in the
starements of comprenensive income a5 follows {see MNowe 13):

2020 24
Project costs P 50079187 T+ 49600413
General and admensstrative expenses 12,495 781 13,466,733

P 71,574,938 63,166,146

MICROSAVINGS

This accomne 15 hroken down as follows:

2024 201y
CRL P10,160,332,021 T 9367 480,550
LCBE 1454262 490 1 3HT 520090

E11,614,594.511  P10.749,015,640

The collecred CHU and LEBL or microsavings is for purposes of maim oy o
compensating balance, which 1 wsed to offser against the member's outstanding loan
balance in case of default (see Note 7). The default rates of the Foundanon is 14.36%:
and 00M% ay of December 31 2020 and 2019, respecrively.

CBU pertains 1o weekly savings of PA or more, that each member mainmains during

the frst lean cycle, ix-hu."h earns rebates of up w T perannum. On the succeeding

loan cycles, the members have to maintin a balance equivalenr to ar least 15% of the
avitled principal loan. Rebates are computed and released ro members at the end of

December every vear

LCBLU 15 a mandarory non-interest bearing, altemative savings thar is locked in as o
member withdrawal: The weekly contnbuton is fixed a1 P10, When the LCBEL
teaches PZA00, 309 of such is transferred 10 CBUL It can only be withdrawn in full by
the member upon terminanon of membership from the Foundarian,

All acove members of the Foundanon are required ro maintaie ther MUCTOZAVINES
conrribunons based on preseribed mumimurn levels,

LOANS PAYABLE

Thie :t:mpnﬁiucm of the Foundanion™s nu'rﬁ'rending hianlk loans i shown below.

2020 M4
{Curreat P 434695471 T 503,000,000
Mon-current 711,812 862 F 100, 0L

P1,146,508,333  B1219000,000



Lo enable the Fonndauon to provide uninreraipred miceofinance loans 1o members in
sccordance with the Foundadon’s microfnance progrum, the Foundadon, as pare of irs
cash management, cbrans Anancing through bank loans from vanious fnancil
instirutions and/ or organizanon.

As approved by the BOT on November 17, 2016, the Foundation entered inra 2 Fucility
Apreement (the Agreement) as corporate notes issuer, with three bocal universal banks as
untral noteholders, Credit Guarantee & Investment Facility (1 truse fund of the Asizn
Development Bank) as puarantor, and BP1 Capital Corporstion ss mandsted Jead arranger
and bockrunoer, Based on che Agreement, which was sipned on January 26, 2017, the
tnatial noteholders pranc ro the Foundation a loan faclity with 3 maximuom principal
amncunt of P2U0.000,000, suhjeer 1o release in not more than three tranches starting
February 2017 to Janvary 2018, As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Foundatdon has
fully drawn the P2.001L000 0. The ner proceeds of the note issuance are used by the
Foundation in financing its expansion plans, paying off existing bk loans, and for other
general corpotate purposes.

In addiion, the minal noweholders requite the Foundsdon o maintain the following
ratos: operstional self-sufficiency ratio of more than 110%, portéolio at fisk of less than
1.5%, tl:.]ujTﬁ' To gross [oan pocttelo of more than 15%, net loan porrfolio as percentpe
of assets of more than 50% and a debt ro equite ravo of less than 190%, As of
Drecember 31, 20109, the Foundaton is compliant with all the secusty requirements and
covenants iinposed by cthe respective creditors, As of December 31, 2020, the
Foundation breached the covenanrs an operational self-sufficiency rutio and partfaliy
at sk mato, Accordingly, the Foundapon secured a waiver fromm its three nateholders
on Oetober 9, 2020, Ocreber 12, 2020 and December 14, 20201,

Ax approved by the DO on June 17, 2019, the Foundadon entered inroa Faciliey
Apreement as i corporate note issuer with 2 centain bank, Based an the A greetnent,
which was sipned on October 31, 2019, the noteholder grants mo the Foundaton  loan
facility of three loan tranche amounting o USE 10,000,000 each, O May 12, 2029,
the Foundstion availed of the first tanche loan, which was received on June 18, 2020,

The norcholder requires the Foundation to mainrain the following matios: operational
self-sufficiency ratio of more than 120%:, partfolio ar rsk ratio of less than 1.5%,
debt-to-equity rato of nor mare chan 150%, capital adequacy rasio of more than 22%,
loan loss reserve ratio of more than 5% and Lguidity coverape ratio of more than 100%,
As of December 31, 2020, the Foundaten breached the covenants on eperatonal
self-sufficiency ratio and portdolio at osk reho. The Foundaton requested for @ waver
trom the noteholder, whach was pranted an December 29, 2020

A summnary of the terms and condiions of each loar a5 ar December 31, 2020 and
2019 15 presented below:

QOuistanding
Principal Balance Interest Rate Maturity date
2020 20
i 7,500,000 7 Fixed st 200004, 2021
286,000,000 B, 00, 000 Fized az 5.070% 22
180,000,000 S02 000 Qi Fixed ar 5.1 70 2122
423,008,333 - Fived ar 3. 435%, 200235
250,000,000 ATOO00000  Fixed at 5.900% 20123

P_1,146,508,333 _1.210,000,000
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Intezest expense on iJ]ltrt:*.it-I:lr.'ﬂl'ing loans amounted to PT1,781,302 and PE0.561 03
111 EUED Eﬂd 2':'3‘.;', Iﬂﬁptﬂ:l:i".'l’.']}'l ﬂ.ﬂd iF prt':-jl;'j]tf_'d as Fjal,‘l‘ L‘||:- JJ H.'.j et [:.-_'.5 [s i|-|_ :I-“:_-
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 133,

Unpatd ntereses as ar December 31, 2020 and 2004 amounong to P2Y27 194 and
3,506,308, respectively, are presenred as purt of Accrued expenses under the Other
Liabilittes aveount in the statements of finanaal positton (see Note 11),

The changes in Loans Pavable aceoune in 2020 and 200% are shown helow,

2020 2010
Balance at beginning of year PL219,000,000 P 1,932,000 000
Repayments of loans payable {  605,100,667) ¢ 7150000005
Additonal loans payahble S32.604,000 )
Balance ar end of year I'1,146,508,333  PL219.000,000
OTHER LIABILITIES
This aceount includes the following:
ore 20 20014
Staff benevolent fund P O2BR.T2R 450 P 283 590,450
Aceounts payable 198,723,501 165,335,023
Accrued expenses [0 25,203,996 INT 614213

E_ 509,712,947 [ 756,540,586

staff benevolent fund includes amounts set aside for emploves hospitalizanon,
emplovee death aid, and employee welfure and henefirs,

Accounts payable include gzass receiprs and withholding taxes payable, and unclaimed
benefits of resipned personnel during the reportng perods.

Accrued expenses include accruals for interest expense and various expenses for the
operations of the Foundadon such as light and water, postage and telephone, mavel and
reimbursable expenzes and repairs and maintenance,

OTHER REVENUES

Thas account includes the following:

Motes 20240 2014

Membership contribution P 33281950 P 57129150
Inrerest income foom

bank deposis i3 20,493,929 24281381
Interest mmeome an

ernployee lonns T2 6,417,372 11,453,907
Gain from recovery of

whten-oif sccounts: 6. 341695 11,4485 244

B_66,334946 [ 114349732
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Mew members of the Foundanon s required o contribute P50, The contsbutions i
used by the Foundation to cover adminisrrative fee and supplies cost, presented as part
af Progect Costs in the starements of comprebensive income {see Note 133

EXPEMNSES

Detaals of expenses by nature are shown below.

[ Lo 2020 2019

Impainment loss T4 P 2,585, 402,781 T3,323,030
Emplovee benefits 141,13 250E911,040 2 olE0nd a0
Clent community services BEG, 872 717 148277 070
Travel and transportation 421,562,975 RERE R
Office reneal 18 230,060,921 207275601
Tawes and licenses 19¢ 6, 178,001,043 243 140,902
Inuerest expense 19, 14.2 144, 544 5RO 128090
Staff development znd

confercnce 131,843,766 108,50 582
Ofice supplies 2nd reprodicion 113,551,682 117 #08, 344
Postape and relephone 13,673,865 71,230,350
Drepreciation and amaomaaton b 71,574,938 63,106,144
Light and warer 54,541,312 46,8567 510
rants and donaoons 22 073,000 3T,402.650
Professional fees 20,975,254 35,707 350
Fepairs and mainenance 4,515,552 41,633,033

63,7015

85.238,517

Miscellaneous

P14A67,334,871 L 5111801400

These expenszes are classified and reparted in the strements of comprehensive income as
follows:

2020 ATl

Project costs B3 037,517,518 14,177,229 718

Ceneral and administranive cypenses _1,529,827.353 934 571 653
P1467, 344,871 15001801 400



Project costs are broken down as follows:

Mndes

[mpairnent loss 7
Emplovee benefics 14.1, 15
Travel and manspormancn
Cffce senrsl 18
=aff development and

conference
Imterest expense 1, 14.2

Offsce supplies and reproducrnn
Drepreciation and amormizaton 8
Laght and water

Postage and telephone

Taxes and hcenses 1966
Repairs and maintenance
s cellineows 15

Drerails of general and administzative expenses are shown below,

2020 <
P2,5R5, 402,781 1P 475323030
2,147,371,747 2,271,514, 360
410,352,977 545,178,726
228 014,921 205,177,911
129, 369, 508 97 156,906
122,715,663 113,831 482
74,248,637 85,924 980
59,079,157 40,600 413
54,761,033 45524 09()
42,026,085 30 #4149
309,787,432 50,702 154
3427107 140,652 320
40,060,449 47 209 (88
P03 51T.518 P4177.229 718
2020 20110

Motes
Client cotinunily services
Employee benefits 141,15
Taxes and Ecenses ERATEN
Oifee supphes and reproducrion
Postage and relephone
Giranrs and donatioens
Interest expense 10, 142

Professional fees
Drepreciation and amormza ton H
Travel and teansportation
staff development and

conference
CfAce zental 18
Mliseelbaneouns

P 856,872,717

P148 377070

354,539,302 347 145,940
138,214,511 183,376,531
39,303,045 31,863,369
30,747,779 31,386,401
22,073,000 37,402,650
21E28.920 14,258,537
20,792,231 35454579
12,495,781 13,466,733
11,208 995 57 HZ5.205
2,474,258 11,344,676
2,040,000 2005750
17,229,805 2630276

P1,529,827,353

I 234571 683
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14, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
14.1 Salaries and Emplovee Benefits Expense

Expenses recopnized for salanes and other emplovee benefits are presented below,

Motes 2020 2019
Salares and wages P2I03.E41,588 1222006 467 864
585 HDIME,
Phalhealth contrilmativon: 191,889,023 185,033,754
Postemployment benefies 14.2 167,117,793 172519 RS
Staflf benevolent fund 39062645 543424600

13 P2,500.911,049  P2A1S663300

The smount= nfcmpln}'!_'-u benefis are allocared and reported in the statements of
comprehensive income as follows {see Note 13

2020 L] L .
Project costs P2,147,37L,747 P 2271514300
Cieneral and sdmumstranve CXPEnses 354539302 _ 347.14R.046

£L301.911,049 P 2618,663.306
1.2 Post-cmployment Defined Benefie Plan
fal  Charactersiticr af the Defired Beaefir Plan

The Foundznion maintans an unfunded and nonconributosy post-eoaployment
defined benelit plan covenng a1l regalar full-time employees. The Fanndation
does nol have & formal, erusteed retirement plan,

In 2018, the anticipated redrement henefit set by manapement increased {from
175% to 200% of the plan member's final monthly basic salary pay per year of
service. Benefits are to be paid in lumnp sum, upon refirement or separation.

i) Esplaration of Amounts Precented o the Finoniead S tatemens

Actuanal valuadons are made annually o update the postemmlovment benefir

¥ P P POy
costs and ehlipaoon, All amounts presented in the siceeeding pages are hased un
the actuatial valuabon repon obtained from an independenr acruary in 2020 and
20149,
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The movements in the present value of the postemployment defined benefit
obligation recognized in the starements of foancial position are as follows:

2020 20y
Balance ar beginning of year P1426,727.200 1 657 965500
ANl Service cost 167,117,793 172,819 488
Interest expense 12,763,087 47 538 455
Pameasurcments - actuarial losses
(gains) ."ll!'.lﬁii:l'lj_:_:_ from changes in:
Financil assumprions {  733,111,168) 62,335 240
Expenence adiustments UL,083,868 | 45,710 5400
Benehis paid ( 1L309.5800 45 247,04%
Balance at end of year P 1,013,271, 200 2 1,426,727 200

The components of amounts recopmized n profit or loss and in other
EUi'[][.]IfI?It]lE]‘.-‘t ircome in respect of the st ttm]}]{h:r'm::]j_t defined henefir ]:.15.11 11e
s follows;

2020 2019

Keported dn peafi s farr:
Coarrent seovice cost P 167,007,793 I 172819088
Inrerest expense 72,763,087 47 525 455

I Z39.880,880 P 22034754

Bsporied in other comprebensive fass fincomme):
Acroarial losses {pains] arsing
from :hang:s in:

Finandial assumpaons (P Ti5111,168) 1' 662355940
Expedence adjustments JLOBYRGE (. 4B, TO0 5400
(P_642027.300) P 613655400

Rerirement benelit expense is allocated and presented mn the starementz of
comprehensive income vider the following classiBeation:

2020 e )
Froject costs P 1164982464 [ 1200973 350
General and administeative expenses A0,135.341 518aR T3

E_1e7 17805 [ 1728(9

The interest expense on the obligation 1 allocated and presented in the
statemencs of cnm]':-rr:h-r:n::ir:: meome undet the f;_:ullc-wm;; classification
fsee Note 135

2020 M9
Mroject costs P R0934161 P 323269418
General and adeinisteaove expenses _ 2LHEIRO26 14,258,537

P2T63087 P 47328433
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Amounes rccr:grtized im other comprehensive income of loss were included
within item that will not be reclassified subsequently 1o profic or loss.

In determiming the amounes of the post-employinent defined bencfit obliganon,
the following symificant acruarial assumprions were used:

20120 a0y
[Digcount rates 3.00%; S50
Expected sare of salary increases 700" 12045

Assumptions regarding Furere martalicy are based on published staristics aud
mortaliey tables. The average remaining working lives of an individual retiding at
the ape of 60 55 10 and 19 in 2020 and 2019, respecavely, for both males and
females. These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance
of an independent actvary, Dizcount facrors are determined close ro the end of
each reporting petiod by reference to the interest rates of 3 zero coupon
geveminent bond wich terms ra maruriry approximating o the teems of the post-
emplovinent ohlpation. Orther assumptions are based on currenr acnuarial
benchmarks and management’s histodeal expenence.

Ladher snfaravation

The information on the sensidvicy analvsis for certain sipruficant acruarial
assummptions and the timing and uncertainty of future cash flows relared 10 the
retirement plan zre descrtbed helow,

(B Femaieoiey A radpaie

The following table summarizes the effects af changes in the sigrficant
actuarial assurnpions used in the determinanon of the post-emplovment
defined benefit oblipaton as of December 31, 2020 and 2019-

Impact on Post-employment Defined

Benefit Oblipaton

Chanpe in Increase in Decrease in

Ags o pion _Assumption Assumption

December 31, 2020
Discount rite + 02 L% {P 220ME602) P 30615230
Salary grovth rate + - L0 284543265 | 220,139,270

Bregember 31, 2004

Dhscount mare +/-1.00% g 456552025 P Ja2 414,520
Sulary prowth rale -1 0% 428018158 3B I4T.254)
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The sensitiviry analysis is based on a change in an sssumption while holding =i
other assumprtions constant, This analysis may noc he representatve of the
acrual change in the post-employment defined henefit obliganon as i is unlikely
that the change in assumptons would ocoer in isolation of one anather as some
of the assumptions may be coreclared. Furthermore, in presendng the above
sensidvity analysis, the present value of the post-employment defined benefit
abligation ar the end of the reporting penod has been calculared using the
projected unit credit method, which 15 the same a5 that applied in caleulanng the
post-employinent debined benefit oblipadon recognized in the stutement of
financial positon.

1he methods and opes of assumptions used 1n prepanng the sensiovire analysis
did ot change compaed 1o the previous years.

(il Fupding Arranpermenis and Exgeced Comtribuiion

At the end of the reporang penod, the Foundaton has not ver esmblished s
funding plan for post-employment defined benent oblyraton. While there are no
minimum funding requirements in the countey, the size of the undesfunding max
pose a cash flow rsk in about seven years” dime when a significanr number of
emplovecs 1s expected to retre.

The Foundadon's undiscounted expected benefit payments from the plan
arnount to PE3 459 277 within seven vears at the end of 2020 and P24, 180,654 at
the end of 2017%,

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the weighted average duration of the
post-emplovment defined benefic obligation at the end of the reparting petiod 1
11 vears and 19 years, respectvely,

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Foundation's related parnes inelude its keyv manapement persannel 2nd others as
descabed in Note 211,

The compensanon grven to key manapement persannel in the form ol short-term
Leniefits amounted o PE2,903, 166 and PA4,585,663 in 2020 and 2019, respectively;
while post-employment benefits amounted vo 1O S0, 00 and P12,223,145 in 2020
and 2019, I\':E-!:rEETi 'I.":'-I:g'., and 15 prf::mn:.m.i as part of Employee Benefirs under Expenses
i the statements of comprehensive income (see Ware 13).

In 2016, the Foundadon entered into a software implementation coneracr with

Mr. BMehed Tarafder, Chief Executve Officer of Iyosna Inc. and son of the president
of the Foundavon, {or the development of « sofrware needed by the Foundation
achieve full sutomanen of its operadon at ics heanch level, which mclude cliene
management, loan tracking and collecton of muluple loan services, reparong and
consolidanon of Financial Infomnation 5];51_:1'['. st central level, [The conuract with
Jvosna Inc, saus fied the Foundadon’s policy on condlict af interest Ly ensuring rhat the
sepvice fee is under normal terms and eondidon. The Infommedon Technalogy
expenses amounced to P72 000 gad PG ATZ 000 in 2020 and 2010, respectively and is
presented as part of Miscellaneous under Project Costs i the statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 13).
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TAXATION COVERAGE AND EXEMPTIONS

The Foundauon i s nonstock, nonprofit corporaton and che pritnary purpose of
which is one of thoze enumerared in Secton 30 of the Tax Reform Act of 1997

(RoA. Mo, 8424, Nepart of the excess of revenues over expenses of the Foundation
anures 1o the benefit of any of its members, emplovees, key officers or board of
trustees. The trustees do not receive any compensation, excepr for inconsequental
honorarium (o defray costs wmeurred in arrending board mevtings. [n case of
dissalution, the assets of the Foundarion shall be transferred ro 2 similar mstitution or
te the povemment, in the shsence of the fonmer

On November 3, 2015, R.A. No. 10603 othersise known as the “Mierofinance N0
A {the Act) was signed mto law. The Acr provides thar duly repistered and
microfinance NGOs shall be ehgible ro the preferendal tax rearment of fwo percent

i 2%) based on its gross receipes from mictofinance operations in lien of zll natanal
caxes. o 20200 and 2019, the Foundarion Paid gzoss recespts tax ((GRT) amounring
P128 267 653 and P1G3, 409461, respectvely [see More 190, Moreover, income
detived by the Foundarion fem it propentics, real or personal, or from any of s
activiies not covered by the exempton or acovides conducted for profic tepardless of
the dispositien made of such income, 15 subjecr o income tax. The Foundaton hes no
reansaenon subjected o income ey in 2020 and 2019,

FUND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Foundanon’s capiral management sbjectives are to genesate lunds to expand its
microfinance operations by collectng revenne from financing sctvites ar rares
commensurate 10 the level of nsk, o faclitate the convergence and provision of ether
social services (o the poor, snd to ensure the Foundaton's sustainahiliog o continue a=
& gOINgE concer.

The Poundation monitors fands on the basts of the carrying amount of the fund
balance as presented in the statements of fnancial posiio,

The Fountdaton sets the amounr of fund in propornon to ks overzll Bnanciog
structure, 1e., fund balance and loans from thard partes. The Foundation manages che
tund strucoure and makes adjusonents to it in the light of chanpes 11 economic
condinons and the rsk charsctersdes of the underlying assers,

2020 2019
Total loans from third parries PLI46,508333  1'1,219.000,000
Total fund balance B.6072 491 027 9063932041
External loans-to-fund tatmn — 013000 013000

While the Foundauon has breached certain covenant ebligations related o its interest-
bearing loans s of the end of the reporing periods, the management was able to abrain
walvers from the creditors (see Nate 103
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGEMNCIES
181 Operating Lease Commiitnents — Foundation as Lessee

The Foundadon has operadng lease agreements coveting vanous office spaces
occupied by the Foundation and its branches for a penod of six months to one vear
The lease agreements require the Foundation to pay rental deposits. Olustanding reneal
deposits as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to PAR, 680,757 and P37,973,672,
respectively, and are shown as Rental Deposits in the sratements of financal positon.

Rent expense reeogmzed relared o these operating leases amounted 1o P230,060,921
ard P207 273 661 in 2020 and 2019, respectvely, which are allocated ta hoth Project
Coste and General and Admanisteative Expenses under Expenses section in statements
of comprehensive ineotne (gee Mote 13),

182 (hers

There are other commitments and contingencies that ardse in the normal course of the
Foundaton's operadons which are nor reflected in the financial stetements. As of
Dercember 31, 2020 and 2019, management 15 of the opimion that losses, if zny, tha
may amse from these commitments and contingencies will not have & materal effect on
the Foundanon's Gnaneial starements,

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAL OF
INTERNAL REVENUE

Presented below and in the succeeding page are the supplementary mformanon which
15 requured by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) undet its existing revenue
regulanons to be disclosed as parr of the notes to financial statements. This
supplemiensary information s not & required disclosure under PERS. Al information
are presented in their absolute amounts,

The wtormanon oo taxes, duties and heense fees paid or sccrued during the taxable
vear required under Revenee 'I'{cgulnl:ic;:-n Bo. 152000 are gz follows:

fal Chatpnd Ve added Tax (VAT
The Foundation has not meurred any outpur tax hability for the year ended
Drecembier 31, 2020025 it has no revenue transactons subject 1o VAT
(see More 16,

{hi Taput VAT
The Foundztion did not recogmize any input VAL, It records all impur VAT on
putchases of poods and secvices as expense or part of cost of assers smee it would
not be recovered from seming-off with any ourput tax lisbility in the furre.

fel Docmeniary Stamp Tas
The Foundaton paid documentary stamp tax (5T i 2020 amouneng to

174,520,633, which i= related to the several Inans mrigm;}md during the vear
[sie INone TRED.
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fid) Tazees on Imperiation

The Foundation did not iear or pay any customs’ duties aod tanff fees as i did nor
have any importaton for the vear ended December 31, 2020,

f&) Emie Taxe

The Foundaton did not have any ansecnons in 2020, which aze subject to excise
ra.

{f Taxes and feenies

Drerails of raxes and licenses in 2020 are shown below,

Iwosties
GRT 14 128,267,653
Licenses and permits 30,193,544
DsT 19(c) 4 520633
Local taxes TN 129
FBeal estate taxes 407 (1910
Ozher taxes 4 5 RBoz

178,001,945

The amounts of taxes and licenses are allocated and presented in the
2020 swarernent of comprehensive income as follows (see Mot 130

General and administraove expenses I* 138,214,511
Project costs A9 TRT 437
P 178,000,943

(el Wahbaiding Taxer

Details of votal withhalding taxes for the year ended December 31, 2020
gre shown below.

Expanded Poo0032045
Compensation and employee benefits FE01,21

E__57.974,216

The Foundanion has no transactions selyect to fnal vathholding mxes duting the
Jear.

{h) Dieficency Tase Asiestoment and T Carer
The Foundation does not have any final deficiency max assessments with the BIR

for does it have tax cases nutsmndiﬂg OF pcndj_ng N eocs or hodies nutside of the
BIR i anv of the open raxahle [_1.-,_-ri-:_:-ds.



